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Bahrain Telecommunications Company BSC

CHAIRMAN'S REFORT
For the year ended 31 December 2017

On behalf of the Board of Directors, it gives me great pleasure to present the 36" Annual Report of
the Bahrain Telecommunications Company BSC and its subsidiaries and affiliates (The Batelco
Group), for the year ended 31! December 2017.

Batelco announced a 3% increase in gross revenues, reaching BD379.4M (US$1,006.4M) for the full year
2017, as compared to BD367.1M (US$973.7M) in 2016. Organic gross revenue, which grew for the first time
since 2009, was boosted by double-digit growth in broadband and digital services, reporting 16% and 13%
growth respectively.

EBITDA for the year was BD124.7M (US$330.8M), a decline of 8% YoY from BD135.2M (US$358.6M) in
2016. The decline in EBITDA is mainly attributable to BD8.1M (US$21.5M) voluntary employee retirement
costs incurred in Batelco Bahrain. The Group continues to concentrate on its cost containment programmes
and sustained a robust EBITDA margin of 33%.

The Group's operating profit for the year was BD58.4M (US$154.9M), reflecting an 11% decrease YoY from
BD65.4M (US$173.5M) in 2016. However, excluding voluntary employee retirement costs operating profits
are up 2% from the prior year.

The Group ended the year with net profit of BD3.5M (US$9.3M) compared to BD37 .6M {US$99.7M) reported
in 2016, @ 91% year over year decline. The reduced net profits for the period are mainly impacted by
impairment losses related to the Group's investments In Yemen and Jordan which were acquired in 2007
and 2006 respectively, and reflect the prudent and conservative strategy of the Group and the Board of
Directors since 2013 and in line with IFRS requirements. The normalised net profit, excluding these
impairments was more than BD40.0M (US$106.1M).

Sabafon. in which the Group has a 26.94% shareholding and acquired in 2007, faced unique operating
challenges as a result of the ongoing conflict in Yemen and currency decline. These factors have increased
the economic impact on the company and as a result Batelco has impaired the carrying value of its
investment by BD30.0M (US$79.6M). However, Batelco continues to believe that Sabafon has solid
business fundamentals. The business is still generating positive EBITDA and the market, once it stabilizes,
has significant growth potential.

In Jordan, high telecom taxes and increased electricity costs on telecom companies contributed to an
impairment of goodwill of BD20.0M (US$53.1M).

These impairments are isolated to our investments in Yemen and Jordan and represent a prudent decision in
line with IFRS and are not reflective of the Group's financial health.

The Group’s balance sheet and financial position remain resilient in spite of the difficult operating
environment. As of 31 December 2017, net assets were BD502.5M (US$1,332.9M) with substantial cash
and bank balances of BD158.7M (1US$421.0M) and a Net Debt to EBITDA ratio of 0.64, considerably lower
than the regional and international industry average. Earmings per share for the full year in 2017 stood at 2.1
fils, compared with 22.6 fils reported in 20186,



Bahrain Telecommunications Company BSC

CHAIRMAN'S REPORT
For the year ended 31 December 2017

Proposed Appropriations

Based on the financial results, the Board of Directors has recommended for the approval of shareholders,
the following appropriations for the year 2017,

BD millions [ 2017 2016 ]
Final cash dividends 24.95 1 24.95 )

proposed

Interim cash dividends 16.63 16.63

paid :

Donations at 2.5% 0.09 0.94

Transfer to sfatutory Nil Nil

reserve | I

The Board of Directors has recommended a full year cash dividend of BD 24.9M (US$66.2M), at a value of
25 fils per share to be agreed at the Group's Annual General Meeting, of which 10 fils per share was already
paid during the third quarter of 2017 with the remaining 15 fils to be paid following the AGM in March 2018.
The dividend is consistent with previous years and is an example of Batelco’s commitment (o its
shareholders.

We continue to progress well in order to execute our strategic plan. The business is in great shape, with
strong fundamentals, a solid subscriber base and a local market that is outperforming. However, some of our
international businesses continue to feel the impact of the political and economic instability across the region
and we are providing them with all the support necessary to get them through this difficult period.

Overall, | am pleased to see that our hard work is paying off. We have maintained a robust cash position and
we will pay our shareholders a dividend this year consistent with prior year payouts. | am highly optimistic
for the future of Batelco Group as we continue into 2018. We have a sound strategy, an accomplished
executive team and a pipeline of products and services to support us in our path forward. As we look ahead,
our goal is to bulld on this recent success and continue to be a national champion for Bahrain.

Auditors

The Board of Directors will recommend the re-appointment of KPMG Fakhro as Batelco's auditors for the
financial year ending 31st December 2018.

Appreciation to Bahrain’s Leadership

On behalf of Bateico Board of Directors and all members of Batelco teams, | extend appreciation to His
Majesty King Hamad bin Isa Al Khalifa, King of Bahrain, His Royal Highness Prince Khalifa hin Salman Al
Khalifa, the Prime Minister and His Royal Highness Prince Salman bin Hamad Al Khalifa, Crown Prince,
Deputy Supreme Commander and First Deputy Premier.

| extend appreciation to my colleagues on the Board for thelr dedication and to Batelco's shareholders for
their confidence in supporting our strategies. Additionally, | offer a big vote of thanks to management and
staff throughout the Group for their efforts during 2017. We have a strong network of employees across all
markets and their enthusiasm and commitment deserves much praise,



Bahrain Telecommunications Company BSC

CHAIRMAN'S REPORT
For the year ended 31 December 2017

Guidance and Outlook for 2018

Looking ahead, we are planning to expand our business scope, scale and performance to enhance customer
value as much as we can. Our core focus areas are digital services, fixed and mobile data, and multi-play

offerings.

We are confident in our future guidance, and believe we have a solid strategy in place to help achieve our
target revenue and net profit for the full year 2018.

it !

&
Mchammed bin Khalifa Al Khalifa
Chalrman of the Board
Bahrain Telecommunications Company BSC

22 February 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

Bahrain Telecommunications Company 85C
PO Box 106

Manama

Kingdom of Bahrain

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Bahrain Telecommunication Company BSC
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries {together the 'Group’), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2017, the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, cash
flows and changes in equity for the year then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2017, and its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with international Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing {1SAs}. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. Wa are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants Code of Ethics for Professicnal Accountants {IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matiers

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professicnal judgment, were of most significance in cur audit of the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion therson, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters,

Revenue recognifion
{refer to the accounting policies in note 3 p) and disclosure in note 20 of the consolidated financial statements)

Description How the matter was addressed in our audit
We focused on this area because: Qur audil approach included controls testing and substantive

procedures covering, in particular:
— There is an inherent risk arcund the

accuracy of revenue recorded given the — testing the IT environment in which billing, rating and other
complexity of systems and the impact of relevant support systems reside, including the change contro
changing pricing models to revenue procedures in place around systems that bill material revenue
recognition {tariff structures, incentive streams;

arrangements, discounts etc. ). ) .
— testing the controls and governance processes over reconciliation

— The application of revenue recognition from business support systems te billing and rating systems to the
accounting standards is complex and general ledger,
involves a number of key judgements and

— performing tests on the accuracy of customer bill generation on a
sample basis and testing of a sample of the credits and discounts
applied to customer bills;

estimates.

— performing tests on allocation of revenue for bundled contracts
and recognition of revenue on multi-period contracts;

— performing tests on reasonableness of allocation and utilisation of
deferred revenue representing undelivered service obligations; and

— assessed whether the consolidated financial statements
disclosures relating 1o revenue recognition were appropriate.
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Independent Auditors' Report To The Shareholders (Continued)
Bahrain Telecommunicalion Company BSC

22 February 2018

Carrying value of goodwill
{refer to the use of estimate and management judgement in note 6 and impairment policy in note 3 Iii} of the
consolidated financial staterments)

Description How the matter was addressed in our audit

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's Qur audit procedures, amongst others, included:

consolidated financial statements includes
recognised goodwill of BD 136.6 million which
arose from the acquisition of subsidiaries.

An assessment is required anpually to
establish whether this goodwill should
continue to be recegnised, or if any
impairment is required. The impairment
assessment relies on determining the
recoverable amount of the investment in the
subsidiary using valuation technigues such as
discounted cash flows. The estimation of
future cash flows and the rate at which they
are discounted is inherently uncertain and
requires significant judgment and hence has
been identified as a key area of audit focus.

For the year ended 31 December 2017,
impairment charge of BD 20 million was
recognised related to goodwill in the Group's
subsidiary in Jordan.

Carrying value of investment in associate

— understanding of the group's budgeting process upon which the
forecasts are based;

— wae invalved our own valuation specialists to assist us in:

— assessed whether the consclidated financial

evalualing the appropriateness of the methodology used by
the Group to assess impairment of goodwill, and

evaluating key inputs and assumptions in cash flow
projections used by the Group in comparison {o externally
derived data as well as our own assessments of investee
specific circumstances and experience in the related
industry. in particular its derivation of discount rates, long
tern growth rates, revenue and EBITDA margins and
comparing progress against stated business plans.

statements

disclosures relating to key inputs and assumptions for goodwill
impairment were apprapriats.

{refer to the use of estimate and management judgement in note 8 and impairment policy in note 3 Ifii} and 4 afii) of the

consofidated financial statements)

Description

We focused on this area because:

The Group's investment in associate
amounting to BD 34.8 million is
situated in a geographical Jocation
which is currently considered
unstable and high risk;

- Theimpairment assessment is
subjective and involves management
judgement and estimates, in
particular relating to the future
prospects of the investee, the
continuing operations and expected
benefits from the business; and

- Forthe year ended 31 December
2017, a impairment charge of BD 30
millicn was recognised related to its
investment in associates {Sabafon).

How the matter was addressad in our audit

Our audit procedures, amongst others, included:

— evaluating the group's basis of developing forecasts for an
investee under stress,

— we involved our own valuation specialists to assist us in:

evaluating the appropriateness of the methodology usaed by
the Group to assess impairment of carrying vatue of
investments in associate; and

evaluating key inputs and assumptions in cash flow
projections used by the Group as well as our own
assessments of investee spacific circumstances and
axparience in the related geography, in particular its
derivation of revenues, margins, discount rates and expected
leng term growth rates.

— assessed whether the consolidated financial statements
disclosures relating to key inputs and assumptions for impairment
of investment in associate were appropriate.
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Independent Auditors’ Report To The Shareholders (Continued)
Bahrain Telecommunication Company BSC

22 February 2018

Capitalisation and useful lives of property and equipment and other intangible assets
(refer to accounting policy in notes 3 c) and 3 g) and disclosures in note & and 7 of the consofidated financial
sfatements)

Description How the matter was addressed in our audit

We focused on this area because there are a QOur procedures, amongst others, included:
number of areas where management

judgement impacts the carrying value of — we tested controls in place over the fixed asset cycle, and
property and equipment and other intangible acquisition of other intangible assets, evaluated the
assets and their respective depreciation/ appropriateness of capitalisation policies and assessed the
amortisation profiles. These include: timeliness of the transfer of assets in the course af construction;
- The decision to capitalise or expense — we assessed the nature of costs incurred in capital projects
costs; through testing of amounts recarded and assessing whether the
= The annual asset life review including the description of the expenditure met capitafisation criteria;
impact of changes in the Group's
sirategy; and — we tested the controls over the annual review of useful life of
- The timetiness of the transfer from assets assels. In addition, we tested whether the Group's decisions on
in the course of construction/ useful life of asset are appropriate by considering our knowledge
deployment. of the business and practice in the wider telecoms industry; and

— assessed whether the consolidated financial statements
disclosures relating to capitalisation and useful life of property
and equipment and other intangible assets were appropriate.

Other inforrmation

The board of directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises information in the annual
report but does not include the financial statements and our auditors' report thereon. Prior to the date of our auditor's
report, we cbtained the report of the board of directors which forms part of the annual report, and the remaining sections
of the annual report are expected to be made available o us after that date.

Our opinion on the financial skalements does not cover the other information and we do not and will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In conmection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identifiad
above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we have obtained prior to the date of this
auditors’ report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the hoard of directors for the consolidated financial statements

The board of directors is responsikle for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with IFRS, and for such intemal control as the board of directors determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the board of dirsctors is responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the board of directors either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative bul to do so.

Auditors’ responsibifities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the conselidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion.
Reasanable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantes that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.



Independent Auditors’ Report To The Shareholders (Continued)
Bahrain Telecommunication Company BSC

22 February 2018

As part of an audit in accordance with I1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our apinion. The risk of nat detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal controf.

®*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

® Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the board of directors.

s Conclude on the appropriateness of the board of directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required o draw attention in aur auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continug as a going concern,

# Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consalidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a mannsr that achieves fair presentation.

®  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion,

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, retated safeguards,

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing $o would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on other regulatory requirements
As required by the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law, we report that:

a) the Company has maintained proper accounting records and the financial statements are in agreement therewith;

b) the financial information contained in the chairman’s report is consistent with the consolidated financial
statements;

o) we are not aware of any violations during the year of the Babrain Commercial Companies Law, the Bahrain
Bourse rules and procedures or the terms of the Company’s memorandum and articles of association that would
have had a material adverse effect on the business of the Company or on its financial position; and

d) satisfactory explanations and information have been provided to us by management in response to all our
raquests.

The engagerent partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors' report is Mahesh Balasubramanian.

KPMG Fakhro
Partner registration number 137
22 February 2018



Bahrain Telecommunications Company BSC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2017 BD’000
I Note 2017 2016
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property and equipment B 274,764 264,827
Goodwill B 136,602 185,053
Other intangible assets 7 134,469 140,486
Investment in associate 8 34,836 68,806
Deferrad tax assets 14 7,534 6,394
Post-employment benefit assels 25 3,507 3,632
Other investments = = 9 41,592 43,424
Total non-current assets 633,394 682,522
Current assets
Inventories 7,895 4,347
Trade and other receivables 10 132,509 91,660
Cash and bank balances 11 158,703 172,406
Total current assets 299,107 268,413
Total assets 932,501 950,935
LIABILITIES -
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables 12 6,110 5,858
Loans and borrowings 15 221,254 226,271
~Deferred tax liabilities 14 13,837 14,867
Total non-current liabilities 241,201 246,996
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 12 171,892 158,886
Loans and borrowings 15 16,941 8,085
Total current liabilities 188,833 166,971
Total liabilities 430,034 413,967
Net assets 502,467 536,968
EQUITY
Share capital 16 166,320 166,320
Statutory reserve 17 84,116 84,116
General reserve 17 45,830 45,800
Foreign currency translation reserve (13,223) (21,437)
Investment fair value reserve (26,767) (26,870)
Post-employment benefit actuarial reserve 25 (5,665) (5,399)
Retained earnings 211,212 250,241
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the 461,883 492,861
Company
Non-contrelling interest 40,584 44,107
Total equity (Page 11 - 12} 502,467 536,968

The consolidated financial statements, which consist of pages 8 to 59 were approved by the Board of

Directors on 22 February 2018 and signed on its behalf by:
— e
thanfa Al Khalifa Abdulrahman Yusuf Fakhro

Chairman Deputy Chairman
The accompanying notes 1 to 32 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Bahrain Telecommunications Company BSC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BD'000
_ Note 2017 2016
REVENUE 20 379,446 367,132

EXPENSES
Network operating expenses 21 (147,699) (135,518)
Staff costs (58,461) (56,083)
Voluntary employee retirement program cost 13 (8,050) =
Depreciation and amortization (66,319) (69,863)
Impairment loss on trade receivables 10 {1,979) {1,857)
Other operating expenses 22 (38,549} {38,640)
Total expenses (321,057) (301,761)
Results from operating activities 58,389 65,371
Finance income 5,062 4,638
Finance expenses (12,172) {12,426)
Other income {net) 23 19,889 - 227
Loss on investments 24 (51,249) (10,000)
Share of loss from associate (net) 8 (3,870) =
Profit hefore taxation 15,949 47,810
Income tax expense 14 (2,709) {1,688)
Profit for the year 13,240 46,122
Other comprehensive income
ftems that are or may be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss
Foreign currency translation differences — foreign operations 8,220 (17,864)
Fair value changes (debt securities) 145 1,408
8,365 (16,456)
Items that will never be reclassified to profit or Ioss
Fair value changes {equity securities) (42) {5,936)
Re-measurement of defined benefit asset including related tax 25 (266) {794)
{303) (6,730)
_Other comprehensive income, net of tax 8,057 (23,186}
Total comprehensive income for the year 21,297 22,936
Profit for the year attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 3,491 37,639
Non-contralling interest 9,749 8,483
13,240 46,122
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 11,543 14,463
Non-controlling interest 9,754 8,473
21,297 22,936
Basic and diluted earnings per share (Fils) 26 2.10 226

The consolidated financial statements, which consist of pages 8 to 59 were approved by the Board of

Abdulfahman Yusuf Fakhro

Directors on 22 February 2018 and signed on its behalf by:

—
MofmreabimKhalifa Al Khalifa

Chafrman

The accompanying notes 1 to 32 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

g

Deputy Chairman



Bahrain Telecommunications Company BSC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BD'000
Note 2017 2016
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Results from operating activities 58,389 65,371
Adjustment for:
Depreciation and amortisation 66,319 69,863
Impairment loss on trade receivables 1,979 1,657
126,687 136,891
Working capital changes:
{Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables (13,139) 6,202
{Increase)/decrease in inventories (3.463) 77
Decrease in trade and other payables (5,368) (1,452)
Cash generated from operating activities 104,717 141,808
Taxes paid (5,809) (6,020)
Payment to chaities - (2,087) (618)
Net cash from operating activities 96,821 135,170
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of property, equipment and intangibles (54,193) (72,554}
Net cash for purchase of other investments (4,430) {849)
Interest and investment income received 5,563 4,645
'Net cash used in investing activities (53,060) (68,758)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid (54,858} (51,616)
Interest paid (10,890) {11,208)
Borrowings (net) 3,699 7,959
Net cash used in financing activities (62,049) (54,865)
(Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (18,288) 11,547
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 114,611 103,064
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 11 96,323 114,611

The accompanying notes 1 to 32 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

10



Ll

‘SJUaWalEls [RIDURLY DSIEPIOSUGS asay) Jo Jed jeibajul Ue Luo) Z¢ 0) | sejou Buhuedwoooe syl

207205 ves‘ov $88°10% 7L (599°6) (292°92) (ezz'el) 068Gy  9LL'V8 0ZE'991 L10z Jaquiadeq LE v
{ger'ss)  (LL2'e)) {tze'zy) {1ze'zy) - - - - - - SUORNGLSIP PUE SUOKNGLIUOD |2301
(112'CL) (Li'cL) E - - - - = - = 1S3.31W1 BUy0IILo3-UoU 0} SpUapIAI]
(zeg'gl} - (zco'gl)  (zeo'al) - - - - - - gL 2L0Z 10} PaIEIISp SPUSPIAID WHSH|
(L¥8) = (116} (16} - - - = = = 9102 10} PBIRDSP SUCHEUO(]
(8ro'vz) - {sv6'vz)  (8v6'v2) - - - - - - gL 91L0T 10} POIRJOAP SPUBPIAR [BUL]
SUQNqUISIP PUE suoRhquUIue)
‘ ; ; Jeak ay] 10} aWoau aalsuayaidwon 230
162 ¥SL'6 ePSLL Zeb'E (002) €04 viz'8 - . . HI iSRS 19304
150°8 G zs0'e ! {992) £0L yic'e = = = JWooul 3AISUBY3AIIOD J3Y]0 [E10)
Sz XEB) palefaJ buipnjoul
(992) i (992) - (992) - - . : . AIIGE)| 1yoUsq PSUYSP 4O JUSWSINSEAWSY
col - €0l - - oL 3 - = - sabueys anjea Jg} JuslusoAU|
072'8 ¢ 517'g L } - v12'g . . - soouasaIp uonesues) Aouaun? ubvioy
awoou] aA1suUsYy3Ido J3YI0
ovZ'El 6vL'6 L6v's Lsb'e - - - - - - Jeal ayy 40} Wo.d
896'95G 201'py L98°z6y  1¥Z'062 (66€'S) {0/8'92) (2¢$'12) 068'Sk 9l1'v8 02¢'091 210g Aenuer | 1y
fAnba FEETER] [ejol sBujies EYNEYE)) EYSELL)] aalasal a/asal aAnlesal  |epdes 310N
1eye L Buyjonuos peule}sy [eUEN)IE anjea Jel uope|suRn jelauan  Aioinjels BIEYS
- UON Jyauaq JuBWISIAU| Aauauna
jusuiho|dwa ubRiog 1102
-150d
Auedwon ayy jo siep|oy Ajnba 0} ajqenqupe Ajnbg
000.a4d 1107 19gWa2eq LS PePU2 Jeah a\) Jog

ALIND3A NI SIONVHD 4O INJWIALVLS A3LVAITOSNOD

agg Auedwon suonedIURWWO23[3] ulelyeqg



Zl

'SJUSWIBIEIS [BIUEUl. PRIepIOsSuod asal) jo Hed |esBajul ue uuoj Z¢ 0} | $9jou BulAuedwosse sy |

910z 12qwsdad LE W

996'0£5 201'PP Log'zey  1$2'06Z (66£°G) (0£8°92) (Lev12) 068'SP 9l1'v8 0Z£'991
{yor'zs)  (985'6) (g18'2r)  (818°Zy) = = > = - - SUCUNQUISEP PUE SUONNGIRUOD |E101
(985'6) {985'6) - = = = = = Z = 18as31Ul HUYLONUOI-UoL 0] SpUBpIAI]
(zeg'oL) - (zeo'or)  (zeo'ol) - - =+ - = . gl 9107 10} poseoap SpUSPIAP LWLISJU|
(aez't} - (8ez’y)  (8eT't) - - - - - E §10g 10§ paue|oop suofeucg
(sy6'vz) - (sve'vz)  (8¥6'+2) - = - = = - Bi §1.0¢ 104 paJeosp SpuSpiAp [Buly
SUQINGUISIP PUB SUoRnNgau0D

i . . 5 7 IEENE 2LW0JU) aAISLaYIdWoD B)O
0£6'22  ELv8 eor'yl  Zv9's (v62) (gz5'p) (158°21) - : - e 2 e R
(og1'ez) (o) (91'€2) ¢ (v6L) (8257 (268°21) - - - Lo BAISLAYBIALLIOD JBUID [E0L
Xe] paje|al buipnisu
{r6L) : (r62) = {v6e) = : = = . L AJ10.I] JysUS PBULSP JO JUSWBINSE3UISY
{gzs'p) - (gze't) = = (825v) 5 - = - ssbueyn snjea e} JUSUNSSAL)
(ro8'z1)  (o1) (pee'2L) € - - (258°21) - - - seoussop uolersuen Aous.uno ubleiod
awooul sAsuayaIdwod Jayl0
AN cor'g 659'2€ 6£9'/¢ E - - = = " 1e8k ay) 10) Wold
9%’ 605 0ze's 91g'Les  LIP6sE (G09't) (zve'2e) (08s'e) 068Gy 9LL'be 0ZL'29) pAIEISa] Se edueeg
{£19°9) - (J19'e) 82t - {rs8'61) - . - - 6 Sy jo uondepe Apea uo joedw)
£G0'CLS 02z 'St ££8'425  08L'Z¥2 {s09'v) (88p°7) (0gs'e) 063'sk 9LL'v8 0Z£'991 g40¢ Aenuer | 1y
Alnba 1s8seul €10 sbues anasa EINEEET anesel anasal ariasal lende 9JON
€101 Buljlonuod pauIe)a s |euenioe anjen gy uolE|SuUE) [E18UD5) Adonieys aleys
- UGN waueq JUBLISOAU| Aosuaung
awiodws ubBaiod 9102
41504
Rueduwion ayy Jo siepjoy Aunbe ¢ siqeinqupe Aunb3
000.ad 1102 19qwassq |£ Pepus Juak su) iog

ALIND3 NI SEONVHI 40 INFNILVLS J3LYAIMNOSNOD

259 Auedwoy) SUOHEDIUNWIWOID|S | Welyeg



Bahrain Telecommunications Company BSC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BD’000

1 REPORTING ENTITY

Bahrain Telecommunications Company BSC ("the Company’, ‘the Parent”} is a public shareholding
company registered under commercial registration number 11700 in the Kingdom of Bahrain in the year
1981 and is engaged in the provision of public telecommunications and associated products and
services. The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 comprise the
financial statements of the Company, and its subsidiaries {together referred to as the “Group” and
individually as “Group entities”) and the Group's interest in associate. The registered office of the
Company is P.Q. Box 14, Manama, Kingdom of Bahrain. Unless otherwise stated, the subsidiaries as
listed below have share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares, which are held directly by the Group
and the proportion of ownership interests held equals to the voting rights held by Group. The country of
incorporation or registration is also their principal place of business. The subsidiaries and associate of
the Group included in these consolidated financial statements are as follows.

Company

Country of
incorporation

Principal activity

Subsidiaries

Batelco Middle East Holding Co. BSC ()
NBNETCQ B.S.C.{c)

Batelco International Company BSC (c)
Batelco Middle East Jordan LLC

Umniah Maobile Company PSC

Batelco Jordan PSC

Urcell Telecom & Technologies Services LLC

QualityNet General Trading and Contracting
Company WLL

Dhivehi Raajjeyge Gulhun Plc {Dhiraagu)

Sure {Guernsey) Limited

Sure (Jersey) Limited

Foreshore Limited

Sure (Isle of Man) Limited

Sure {Diego Garcia) Limited

Sure South Atlantic Limited

BMIC Limited

Batelco Egypt Communications (S.A.E.)

Batelco International Group Holding Limited

Batelco International Finance No1 Limited

BTC Islands Limited

BTC South Group Limited (formerly BTC
South Atlantic Limited)

Associate
Yemen Company for Mobile Telephony
Y.5.C (“Sabafon”)

Kingdom of Bahrain
Kingdom of Bahrain
Kingdom of Bahrain
Kingdom of Jordan
Kingdom of Jordan
Kingdom of Jordan
Kingdom of Jordan
State of Kuwait

Maldives
Guernsey
Bailiwick of Jersey
Bailiwick of Jersey
Isle of Man
Bermuda
Falklands
Mauritius

Arab Republic of Egypt
Bailiwick of Jersey
Cayman Islands
United Kingdom

United Kingdom

Republic of Yemen

13

Holding Company
Telecommunication services
Holding Company
Holding Company
Telecommunication services
Telecommunication services
Telecommunication services
Telecommunication services

Telecommunication services
Telecommunication services
Telecommunication services
Telecommunication services
Telecommunication services
Telecommunication services
Telecommunication services
Holding Company
Telecommunication services
Holding Company
Holding Company
Holding Company

Holding Company

Telecommunication services

Share
'Holding {%)

100
100
100
100
96
06
96
90

52
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100

100

26.94




Bahrain Telecommunications Company BSC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BD'000

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION
a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”), and the requirements of the Bahrain Commercial Company Law and
Central Bank of Bahrain's Disclosure Standards for listed entities,

b) Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except
for measurement of certain investment securities and contingent consideration in a business
combination that are stated at their fair values.

¢) Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presenied in Bahraini Dinars (“BD"), which is the
Company's functional currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand (BD ‘000),
unless otherwise indicated.

d) Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabiliies, income and expenses. Actual results could differ from these
eslimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods
affected.

Information about key areas of assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a risk of a material
adjustment within the next financial year and critical judgements in applying accounting policies on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements are described in the following notes:

» Note 3 p) Revenue recognition including allocation of revenue from bundled contracts
e Note3D{)& Impairment test for trade receivable: key assumptions underlying expected credit
4 a) (i) losses

» Note 30)&14 Recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profits against
which carry forward tax losses can be used

e Note 31) (i) 6 Impairment of non-financial assets: measurement of the recoverable amounts of
&8 cash- generating units and investment in associates

» Note 3 m){iv) Measurement of defined benefit cbligations: key actuarial assumptions
& 25

e Note 3 ¢), 3 g), Capitalsation and useful lives of property, plant and equipment and other
5&7 intangible assets

14



Bahrain Telecommunications Company BSC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BD’000

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

@) Amendments and interpretations effective from 1 January 2017

The following standards, amendments and interpretations, which became effective as of 1 January
2017, are relevant to the Group:

iii.

Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to 1AS 7)

The amendments require disclosures that enable users of consolidated financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from finaricing activities, including both changes arising from
cash flow and non-cash changes.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.

To satisfy the new disclosure requirements, the Group has presented reconciliation between the
opening and closing balances for liabilities with changes arising from financing activities (Refer Note
19).

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses (Amendments to I1AS 12)
The amendments clarify the accounting for deferred tax assets for unrealized losses on debt
instruments measured at fair value.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.

The adoption of these amendment had no significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle - various standards
The annual improvements to IFRSs to 2012-2014 cycles include a number of amendments to
various IFRSs, which apply prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017,

The adoption of these amendments had no significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

New Standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not yet effective

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 except for early adoption of IFRS 8 and amendments to
IAS 28 in consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December
2017 respectively, those which are relevant to the Group are set out below. The Group does not plan
to early adopt any of these standards.

IFRS 15 Ravenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when
revenue is recognised. It replaces existing revenue recognition guidance, including IAS 18
Revenue, 1AS 11 Consiruction Contracts and IFRIC 13 Customer Loyally Programmes.

IFRS 15 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with early
adoption permitted.

The Group has completed an assessment of the potential impact of the adoption of IFRS 15 on its
consolidated financial statements. The Group plans to adopt IFRS 15 in its consolidated financial
statements for the year ending 31 December 2018, using the cumulative effect method. As a result,
the Group will not apply the requirements of IFRS 15 to the comparative period presented.

15



Bahrain Telecommunications Company BSC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BD’000

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

J

New Standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not yet effective (Continued)

The estimated impact of the adoption of IFRS 15 on the Group’s equity as at 1 January 2018 is based
on assessments undertzken to date and is summarised below.

| As at 31 December | Estimated adjustments Estimated adjusted

2017 due to adoption of opening balance at

. | ~ IFRS 15 1 January 2018

Retained earnings | 211,212 | 1,585 | 212,797

The primary differences arose from allocation of Standalone Selling Price’s (SSP) to components of
bundled contracts and recognition of contract cost assets. The above assessment is preliminary
because not all transition work has been finalized. The actual impact of adopting IFRS 15 on 1
January 2018 may change because:

IFRS 15 will require the Group to revise its accounting process, system changes and internal
controls and these changes are yet to complete,

the new accounting policies, assumptions, judgements and estimation techniques employed are
subject  to change urtil the Group presents its first financial statements that include the date of
initial application.

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 introduces a single, on-balance lease sheet accounting model for lessees. A lessee
recognises a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments. There are optional exemptions for short-term
leases and leases of low value items. Lessor accounting remains similar to the current standard- i.e,
lessors continue to classify leases as finance or operating leases.

IFRS 16 replaces existing leases guidance including IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases-Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.

The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, Early adoption is
permitted for entities that apply IFRS 15 Revenue from Conlracts with Customers at or before the

date of initial application of IFRS 16,

The Group is currently assessing the potential impact on its consolidated financial statements
resulting from IFRS 16,

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
{Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28)

The IASB has made limited scope amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements and
IAS 28 Investments in associates and joint ventures,

The amendments clarify the accounting treatment for sales or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associates or joint ventures. They confirm that the accounting treatment depends on
whether the non-monetary assets sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture conslitute a
‘business’ (as defined in IFRS 3 Business Combinations).

16



Bahrain Telecommunications Company BSC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BD’000

2

f)

3

(i}

(ii}

BASIS OF PREPARATION (ceniinued)
New Standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not yet effective (Continued)

Where the non-monetary assets constitute a business, the investor will recognise the full gain or loss
on the sale or contribution of assets. If the assets do not meet the definition of a business, the gain or
loss is recognised by the investor anly to the extent of the other investor’s interest in the associate or
joint venture.

The effective date for these changes has now been postponed until the completion of a broader
review — which the IASB hopes will result in the simplification of accounting for such transactions and
of other aspects of accounting for assaciates and joint ventures.

The Group is currently assessing the potential impact on its consolidated financial statements
resulting from the amendment.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented
in these consolidated financial statements by the Group’s entities.

Basis of consolidation

Business combinations

The Group accounts for its business combinations using the acquisition method when control is
transferred to the Group. The consideration transferred in acquisition is measured at its fair value, as
are the identifiable net assets acquired.

The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as:

s the fair value of the consideration transferred; plus

« the recognised amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree; plus

« if the business combination achieved in stages, the fair value of the pre-existing equity interest in
the acquiree; less

« the net recognised amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed.

When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognised immediately in the consolidated
income statement.

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related fo settiement of pre-existing
relationships. Such amounts are generally recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Transaction costs are expensed as incurred, except where these relate fo the issue of debt or equity
securities. Any contingent consideration payable is measured at fair value at the date of acquisition. If
contingent consideration is classified as equity, then it is not remeasured and settlement is accounted
for within equity. Otherwise, subsequent changes in the fair value of contingent consideration are
recognised in profit or loss.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group ‘controls’ an entity If it is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvemnent with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date on which control commences until the date on which
control effectively ceases.

17



Bahrain Telecommunications Company BSC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BD'000_
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(iii) Non-controfling interests (NCi)
NCI are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets at the acquisition
date. Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity fransactions.

(iv) Loss of control
When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary, and any related NCI and other components of equity, Any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair value when
control is lost. Subsequently it is accounted for as an equity-accounted investee or in accordance with
the Group’s accounting policy for investment securities depending on the level of influence retained.

(v} Transactions eliminated on consolidation
All material intragroup balances and any unrealised gains or losses or income and expenses arising
from intragroup transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there
is no evidence of impairment. Accounting policies of the subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the peolicies adopted by the Group.

b) Foreign currency

(1) Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of Group entities
at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
fareign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to the funclional currency of the Group’s entities
at the exchange rate at that date. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference
between amortised cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the period, adjusted for payments
during the period, and the amortised cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end
of the reporting period. Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items and on
retranslation are recognised in profit or loss.

(i) Financial statements of foreign operations

The assets and liabilities including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on acquisition of the
Group's subsidiaries and associates based outside the Kingdom of Bahrain (*foreign operations") are
translated into Bahraini Dinars at the exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date. The income and
expenses of foreign operations are translated into Bahraini Dinars at average exchange rates prevailing
during the year. Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations are recognised in the
other comprehensive income and presented in equity as a foreign currency translation reserve. Foreign
currency differences are accurmulated into foreign currency translation reserve in owners’ equity, except
to the extent the translation difference is allocated to NCI.

When foreign operation is disposed of in its entirety such that control is lost, cumulative amount in the

translation reserve is reclassified to consolidated income statement as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.

18



Bahrain Telecommunications Company BSC

NOTES TC THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 'R BD’000
3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
¢} Property and equipment
{i) Recognition and measurement
ttems of property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses.
The cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition cost of the asset. The
cost of self-constructed assets includes the following:
» the cost of materials and direct labour
* any other costs directly attributable to bringing an asset to its working condition for their
intended use
» when the Group has an obligation to remove the assets or restore the site, an estimate of the
costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they were located
= Capitalised borrowing costs.
Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of
that equipment. Where parts of an item of property and equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items {major components} of property and equipment.
Any gains and losses on disposal of an item of property and equipment are determined by comparing
the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property and equipment and are recognised in
profit or loss.
(i} Subsequent costs

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group. On-going repair and maintenance are expensed
as incurred,

(iif) Impairment

Where there has been an indication of impairment in value such that the recoverable amount of an
asset falls below its net book value, provision is made for such impairment. Wherever possible,
individual assets are tested for impairment. However, impairment can often be tested only for groups of
assets because the cash flows upon which the calculation is based do not arise from the use of a single
asset. In these cases, impairment is measured for the smallest group of assets {the cash generating
unit) that produces a largely independent income stream, subject to constraints of practicality and
materiality.

(v} Depreciation

Depreciation is charged to the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
each part of an item of a property and equipment. Assets are depreciated from the date they are
available for use or, in respect of self-constructed assets, from the time an asset is completed and ready
for service. Freehold land, projects in progress and inventories held for capital projects are not
depreciated. The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative period are as follows:

Asset class Estimated useful life
{Years)
Buildings 5-40
Network assets & telecom equipment 2-25
Motor vehicles, furniture, fittings & office equipment 2-10 N

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values, are reassessed and adjusted, if appropriate, at
the year end.
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Bahrain Telecommunications Company BSC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BD’000

3

d)

(i

(ii}

f)

g)

()

(if)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment property

investment property is property held either to eam rental income or for capital appreciation or for both
and that is not occupied by the Group for use in rendering of its services or for administrative purposes.
Investment property is measured at cost (using the cost model), including related transaction costs and
borrowing cests incurred for the purpose of acquiring, constructing or preducing a gualifying investment
property, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Subsequent expenditure is
capitalised to the assef's carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Leased assets

Finance leases

Leases for which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are assumed by the Group are
classified as finance lease. Upon Initial recognition, the leased asset is measured at an amount equal to
the lower of its fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset.
Depreciation on capitalised leased assets is charged to the income statement in line with the
depreciation policy for similar assets. The corresponding leasing commitments are shown as finance
lease obligations within liabilities, Minimum lease payments are apportioned between finance charge
and the reduction of the outstanding liability, The finance charge is calculated using the effective interest
method.

Operatfing leases
All other leases are considered as operating leases and the annual rentals are charged to the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Goodwill

Subsequent to initial recognition, goodwill is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is not amortised but tested for impairment annually at the balance sheet date,

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets comprise license fees, trade name, customer relationships & associated assets,
non-network software and Indefeasible Rights of Use (IRUs}).

Recognition and measurement

License fees, trade name, customer relationships & associaled assets and non-network software
acquired or incurred by the Group have finite useful lives and are measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when
it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other
expenditure, including expenditure on internally generated goodwill is recognised in the profit or loss as
incurred.

Amortisation

Amortisation is recognised in the profit or loss on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of
the intangible assets from the date they are available for use. The estimated useful lives for the current
and comparative periods are as follows:

Asset class Estimated useful life
= (Years)
License fees 7-20
Trade name, customer relationships & associated assets, non- 3-20

network software and IRUs

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values, are reassessed and adjusted, if appropriate, at
the year end.
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Bahrain Telecommunications Company BSC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BD’000

3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

h} Financial assets and financial liabilities

(i) Recognition and initial measurement
All “regular way” purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the settlement date, i.e. the
date that the Group receives or delivers the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the timeframe generally established by
regulation or convention in the market place.
A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus, for an jtem not at FVTPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

(ii) Classification

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost, FVOCI or FVTPL. A
financial asset (which is not an equity instrument} is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the
following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

e The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows thal are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt instrument is measured at FVOCI only if it meets both of the following conditions and Is not
designated as at FVTPL:

e The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

» The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in fair value in OCI This election is made on an investment-by-
investment basis.

(n addition, on initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise
meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

All other financial assets are classified as measured at FVTPL.

The Group currently classified all its receivables and financial liabilities at amortised cost except for
contingent consideration payable which is measured at FVTPL and other investments {debt and equity)
which are carried at either FYTPL or FVOCI.
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Bahrain Telecommunications Company BSC

NOTES TQ THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BD'000
3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

h) Financial assets and financial liabliities (continued)

Business model assessment

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset is held at a
portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to
management. The information considered includes:

e The stated policies and objectives for the portfolioc and the operation of those policies in
practice. In particular, whether management's strategy focuses on earning contractual interest
revenue, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial
assels to the duration of the liabilities that are funding those assets or realising cash flows
through the sale of the assets;

e How the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Group's management;

s The risks that affect the performance of the business model {and the financial assets held
within that business model) and how those risks are managed,

» How managers of the business are compensated - e.g. whether compensation is based on the
fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

» The frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and its
expeciations about future sales activity. However, information about sales activity is not
considered in isolation, but as part of an overall assessment of how the Group's stated objective
for managing the financial assets is achieved and how cash flows are realised.

Financial assets that are held for trading or managed and whase performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis are measured at FVTPL because they are neither held to collect contractual cash flows nor
held both to collect contractual cash flows and to sell financial assets.

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on
initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Group
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset
contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it
would not meet this condition. In making the assessment, the Group considers:

e Contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows;

* [everage feafures;

= Prepayment and extension terms,
Terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (&.g. non-recourse asset
arrangements); and

» Features that modify consideration of the time value of money — e.g. periodical reset of interest
rates,
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Bahrain Telecommunications Company BSC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BD’000
3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
h)  Financial assets and financial fiabilities (continued)
Reclassifications
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after the
Group changes its business model for managing financial assets.
Financial liabilities
The Group classifies its financial liabilities, other than financial guarantees and loan commitments, as
measured at amortised cost.
(iii) Derecognition

Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially a)l of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and
it does not retain control of the financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset {(or the
carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised) and the sum of (i) the consideration
received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and (i) any cumulative gain
or loss that had heen recognised in OCI is recognised in profit or loss.

Any cumulative gain/loss recognised in OCI in respect of equity investment securities designated as at
FVOCI is not recognised in profit or loss on derecognition of such securities. Any interest in transferred
financial assets that gqualify for derecognition that is created or retained by the Group is recognised as a
separate asset or liability.

A financial asset {in whole or in part) is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
asset have expired or the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership or (b) when it has neither transferred or retained substantially all the risks and
rewards and when it no longer has control over the financial asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

Write-off

A financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) when there is no realistic prospect of recovery.
This is generally the case when the Group determines that the obligor does not have assets or sources
of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to
comply with the Group’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

h) Financial assets and financial liabifities (continued)

(iv} Other investments under IFRS 9

k)

The Group currently has certain debt securities measured at FVOCI and equity investment designated
as at FYOCL

For debt securities measured at FVOCI, gains and losses are recognised in OCI, except for the
following, which are recognised in profit or loss in the same manner as for financial assets measured at
amortised cost:

. Interest revenue using the effective interest method;
® Expecied credit losses (ECL) and reversals; and
. Foreign exchange gains and losses,

When debt security measured at FVOCI is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCl is reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

The Group elects to present in OCI changes in the fair value of certain investments in equity instruments
that are not held for trading. The election is made on an instrument-by-instrument basis on initial
recognition and is irrevocable. Gains and losses on such equity instruments are never reclassified to
profit or loss and no impairment is recognised in profit or loss. Dividends are recognised in profit or loss,
unless they clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment, in which case they are
recognised in OCI. Cumulative gains and losses recognised in OCl are transferred to retained eamings
on disposal of an investment.

Share capital

The Company has one class of equity shares. Incremental costs directly atiributable to the issue of
ordinary shares are recognised as a deduction from equity. The Group classifies capital instruments as
financial liakilities or equity instruments in accordance with the substance of the contractual terms of the
instruments,

Inventories

Inventaries are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on a weighted
average basis and includes expenditure incurred in bringing them to their existing location and
condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
selling expenses.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is
probable that the Group will be required to setfle that obligation. Provisions are measured at the
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the year end and are
discounted to present value where the effect is material,

A provision for onerous contracts is recognised when the expected benefits to be derived by the Group
from the contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The
provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract
and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract.
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1)
()

(if)

SIGNIFICANT ACCQUNTING POLICIES (confinued)
Impairment

Financial assets

The Group measures loss allowances for its trade and other receivables arising from its revenue
generating activities at an amount equal to lifetime Expected Credit Loss (ECL) using the simplified
approach permitted under IFRS 9. For other financial instruments, the Group applies the general
approach, where if credit risk has not increased significantly since their initial recognition, impairment is
measured as 12-month ECL and for all other instances lifetime ECL is recognised.

Under the general approach, the Group applies three-stage approach to measuring ECL on financial
assets carried al amortised cost (including long term loans included within the carrying value of
investment in associates) and debt instruments classified as FVOCI. Assets migrate through the
following three stages based on the change in credit quality since initial recognition.

a) Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive). ECLs are discounted at the
effective interest rate of the financial asset,

b) Stage Classification: General approach

Stage 1: 12 months ECL

For exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since intial recognition, the
portion of the lifetime ECL associated with the probability of default events oceuring within next 12
months is recognised.

Stage 2: Lifetime ECL - not credit impaired
For credit exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recoegnition
but that are not credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised.

Stage 3: Lifetime ECL - credit impaired
Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of that asset have accurred.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax
assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment.
if any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. For goodwill and
intangible assets that have indefinite lives or that are not yet available for use, the recoverable amount
is estimated at each reporting date,

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped
together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from conlinuing use that are
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit”"),
The goodwill acquired in a business combination, for the purpose of impairment testing, Is allocated to
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
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(i)

(i

(i}

(i)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds
its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit
{group of units) on a pro rata basis. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In
respect of other assets, impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting
date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

Employee benefits

L ocal employees

Pension rights and other social benefits for the Group’s employees are covered by the applicable social
insurance scheme of the countries in which they are employed are considered as a defined contribution
scheme. The employees and employers contribute monthly to the scheme on a fixed-percentage-of-
salaries basis.

Expatriate employees

Expafriate employees on limited-term contracts are entitled to leaving indemnities payable under the
respective labour faws of the countries in which they are employed, based on length of service and final
remuneration. Provision for this unfunded commitment has been made by calculating the notional
liability had all employees left at the reporting date.

Definad benefit scheme

The Group's net obligation of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating
the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting
that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the
projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Group, the
recaognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future
refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value of
economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the
return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest),
are recognised immediately in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). The Group determines the net
interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the
then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit
liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense
and other expenses related to the defined benefit plans are recognised in profit or loss,

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that

relates to past service or the gain or less on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The
Group recognizes gains and losses on the settiement of a defined benefit plan when settlement occurs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(iv} Defined contribution plans

(v)

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service is
provided. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in future payments is available.

Employee savings scheme

The Company has a voluntary employees saving scheme. The employees and employers contribute
monthly en a fixed-percentage-of-salaries-basis to the scheme. The scheme is a defined contribution
plan.

(vi) Termination Benefits

o)

(i)

(i)

Termination benefits are expensed at the earlier of when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when the Group recognises costs for a restructuring. If benefits are not expected to
be settled wholly within 12 months of the reporting date, then they are discounted.,

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred, except to the
extent where horrowing costs are directly attributable to the construction of an asset that takes a
substantial period to get ready for its intended use or sale, in which case borrowing costs are capitalised
as part of that asset.

Tax

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the profit or loss
excepl 1o the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive
income, in which case it is recognised in equity or other comprehensive income.

Current tax
Current tax is the expected tax payable on taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years,

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assels
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax
is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they
reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or subsiantively enacted by the reporting date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary difference can be realised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at
each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realised. Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are
recognised at the same time as the liability to pay the related dividend is recognised.
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p)

q)

r

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue

Revenue represents the value of fixed or determinable consideration received or receivable for
telecommunication products and services provided. Revenue is recognised, net of discounts and sales
taxes, when it is probabie that the economic benefits associated with a transaction will flow to the Group
and the amount of revenue and associated cost can be measured reliably. The Group principally obtains
revenue from providing telecommunication services comprising access charges, airtime usage,
messaging, interconnect fee, data services and infrastructure provision, installation and activation fees,
equipment sales and other related services.

Revenue for access charges, airtime usage and messaging by contract customers Is recognised as
services are performed, with unbilled revenue resulting from services already provided accrued at the
end of each period and unearned revenue from services to be provided in future periods deferred.

Revenue from the sale of prepaid credit is deferred until such time as the customer uses the airtime, or
the credit expires. Deferred revenue related to unused airtime is recognised when utilised by the
customer. Upon termination of the customer contract, all deferred revenue for unused airtime is
recognised in the profit or loss.

Revenue from interconnect fees is recognised at the time the services are performed. Revenue from
data services and information provision is recognised when the Group has performed the related
service and, depending on the nature of the service, is recognised either at the gross amount hilled to
the customer or the amount receivable by the Group as commission for facilitating the service.

Fees for installation and activation are recognised as revenue upon activation. All installation and
activation costs are expensed as incurred.

Revenue from handset and other equipment sales is recognised when the product is delivered to the
customer. In revenue arrangements from bundled contracts include more than one deliverable that have
value to a customer on stand-alone basis, the arrangement consideration is allocated to each
deliverable based on their fair values.

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic earnings per share {("EPS") data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. The diluted earnings per
share is the same as the basic earnings per share as the Group does not have any dilutive instruments
in issue.

Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it
may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions
with any of the Group's other components. All operating segments’ operating resulls are reviewed by
the Group's Board of Directors to make decisions about resources 1o be allocated to the segment and
assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available (see note 31).
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s) Fair value measurement for financial instrument
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal, or in its absence, the
most advantageous market to which the Group has access at that date. The fair value of a liability
reflects its non-performance risk.
When available, the Group measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active
market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take
place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.
When there is no quoted price in an active market, the Group uses valuation techniques that maximize
the use of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unchservable inputs. The chosen
valuation technique incorporates all the factors that market participants would take into account in
pricing a transaction.
The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the end of the reporting
period during which the change has ocourred.

t)} Asset held-for-sale

(i} Classification
The Group classifies non-current assets as held-for-sale if its carrying amount is expected to be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale 1s
considered highly probable in accordance with IFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held-for-Sale and
Discontinued Operations”.

(i) Measurement

Non-current assets classified as held-for-sale are measured at the lower of its carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell.

H the criteria for classification as held-for-sale are no longer met, the Group ceases to classify the asset
as held-for-sale and measures the asset at the lower of its carrying amount before the asset was
classified as held-for-sale, adjusted for any depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have
been recognised had the asset not been classified as held-for-sale and its recoverable amount at the
date of the subsequent decision not to sell.
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(0

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

. Credit risk
. Liquidity risk
. Market risk

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Group's
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group’s management of
capital. Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these consolidated financial
statements.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk
management framework. The Board of Directors of the Group, through its various committees, oversees
how management monitors compliance with the Group's risk management policies and procedures and
reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group.
The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the
Group, to sel appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and
the Group's activities. The Group, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims
to develop a disciplined and constructive control envirenment in which all employees understand their
roles and obligations.

The Group has established an Audit Committee which is assisted by Group’s Internal Audit Department.
(nternal Audit undertakes both regular and ad-hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures,
the results of which are reported to the Audit Committee.

The Group has also established a centralised Group treasury function which works under the overall
supervision of the Board of Directors of the Group and provides support to the Group for funding, foreign
exchange, interest rate management and counterparty risk management. Treasury operations are
conducted within a framework of policies and guidelines authorised and reviewed by the Group's Board
of Directors. The Group's accounting function provides regular reports of the treasury activity to the
Board of Directors. The Group’s internal auditors review the internal control environment regularly.
There has been no significant change during the financial year, or since the end of the year, to the types
of financial risks faced by the Group or the Group’s approach to the management of those risks,

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument
fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally and materially from the Group’s trade
receivables, other receivables, unbilled revenue, long term financing to associates, debt investment
securilies and cash at bank,

Trade receivables

The Group's trade receivables are monitored based on its customer segmentation and geographical
areas. The Group has an established credit policy under which each new customer is analysed
individually for creditworthiness before the Group’s standard payment and delivery terms and conditions
are offered. Credit limits are established for each customer, which represents the maximum open
amount without requiring approval. Strict eredit control is maintained for both credit period and credit
limits, both of which are monitored continuously by management. Customers that fail to meet the
Group's benchmark creditworthiness may transact with the Group only on a prepayment basis.
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(i)

(i)

(i)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS —~ FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Trade receivables {contintied)

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited due fo the Group's customer
base being large and unrelated. The majority of the Group's net trade receivables are due for payment
within 90 days and largely comprise amounts receivable from consumers and business customers. The
Group obtains deposits for providing services to some residential customers,

The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of life time expeoted
losses in respect of trade receivables. The main components of this allowance are a specific 10ss
component that relates to individually significant exposures, and a collective loss component
established for groups of similar assets aggregated based on customer segment and days past due. For
receivables from telecom operators and government accounts, the net position after considering
payables is assessed based on a variety of data that are determined to be predictive of the risk of loss
(including external credit ratings, financial statements and available external information} and applying
experienced credit judgement. For receivables from customers, accounts are segmented by type of
exposure such as consumer, enterprise, and others accounts and collective life-time ECL allowance is
determined based on historical flow rates, data on payment statistics, actual credit 16ss experience and
management estimates of recoveries based on current status of negotiations and settlement with the
customers. The historic loss experience is adjusted to reflect differences between economic conditions
during the period over which historic data has been collected, current conditions and the Graup’s view
of economic conditions over the remaining life-time of the receivables. Management believes there is no
further credit risk provision required in excess of the narmal impairment on receivables (refer to note
10).

Other receivables and long term financing to an associate

Other receivables primarily include receivables on sale of certain investments and financial assets
representing contractual rights and claims by the Group. The Group evaluates the recoverable amount
of each receivable and recognizes a provision where the expected present value of the cash flow from
the financial asset is below the carrying value of the financial asset. The Group has gross maximum
exposure io other receivables of BD 84.7 million (2016: BD 58.9 million) and has recognized cumulative
credit impaired life-time ECL impairment allowances amounting to BD 35.1 million (2016: BD 31.7
million), Based on the current status of discussions with the debtors and expected realization, the
management believes that the current leve! of provisions is adequate. Long-term financing to associate
forms part of the carrying value of the investment in that associate.

investments and cash and bank balances

The Group manages credit risk on its investments and cash and bank balances by ensuring that these
are made only after credit evaluation of the issuer, Term deposits are placed with commercial banks
after credit evaluation of those banks and considering their external credit ratings. The Group limits its
exposure to credit risk by investing in liquid securities, which offers low risk returns.

As majority of investment are exposures to the domestic sovereign and no credit loss is expected to

materialise on the date of initial application. The calculated expected credit loss of cash and bank
balances is not material for recognition purposes.
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4  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

a) Credit risk (continued)

(iv} Exposure fo credit risk and credit quality
The carrying amount of financial assets (excluding equity investiments) represents the maximum credit
exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

2017 2016
Trade receivables — customer accounts 33,674 29,399
Unbifled revenue — customer accounts 24,785 18,270
Total Trade receivables — customer accounts 58,459 47,669
Trade receivables — telecom operators 16,075 9,660
Other receivables 49,579 27,229
Long term financing to an associate - 2,206
Other investments 34,527 35,593
Cash at bank 158,703 172,406
317,343 294,763
2017 f 2016
Gross Specific Life- Gross | Specific Life-
Trade receivables — Telecom carrying time ECL, carrying time ECL,
operators amount | credit impaired amount | credit impaired
Externally rated
Low risk (BBB- to AAA) 6,283 (235) 3,270 (219)
Medium risk (B- to BB+) 5,922 {462) 5,205 (1,200}
Higher risk {below C) : = = -
Unrated 6,156 (1,589) 3,884 {1,280)
18,361 (2,286) 12,359 (2,699)
Movement in impairment allowance in respect of trade receivables during the year are as follows.
2017 : 2016
Collective life- Specific life- Total | Collective life- Specific life- Total
time ECL, time ECL, time ECL, time ECL,
credit impaired credit impaired
Balance at 1 January 1,385 23,318 | 24,703 1,125 27,414 | 28,539
Amounts written off - (1,418) | (1,418) - {5,418) | (5,418)
Net loss allowance 824 1,155 1,979 265 1,392 1,657
Foreign exchange and |
- 83 83 5 70 75
other movements il (83) (83) - ( i - (70) (75)
Balance at 31 December 2,209 22,972 | 25,181 1,385 | 23,318 | 24,703 |

Receivables from government, telecom operators and other receivables beyond 365 days, 180 days and 20
days past due respectively are considered triggers for credit impairment and are specifically assessed for

establishing ECL.
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4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

a) Credit risk {coniinued)

(v) Customers’ accounts (including unbilled revenue)
The maximum exposure to credit risk classified by operating segment sharing common economic
characteristics with respect to credit risk is as follows:

Operating segment
Bahrain

Jordan

Maldives

Sure

Other countries

Cusfomers’ accounts

2017 | | 2016
36,163 25,679
8,335 10,776
6,423 4,716
2,934 2,007
4,604 | 3,501
|
58,459 47,669

The maximum exposure to credit risk classified by customer segments sharing
characteristics with respect to credit risk is as follows:

Customer segment

Consumer
Enterprise
Others

Government

commaon economic

December

2017

Gross | Life-time

exposure ECL

Current (0 — 30 days) 36,239 (406)

31 - 90 days {1,048)

91 — 365 days {3,396)
More than 1 year 18,641 {16,255) _

Balance as at b} 72,467 (21,105)

2017 2016 |
|
26,388 18,207 |
24,170 16,148
3,804 7,720
51,362 42,075
7,097 5,594
:, 58,459 47,669
| 2016
Credit |  Gross | Life-time Credit
Impaired | exposure ECL | Impaired
No | 27,121 (103) No
Na 8,591 (881} Nao
Yes 8,325 {4,651} Yes
Yes | 17,759 | (14,086) Yes |
61,796 (19,721)

Consumer, enterprise and other receivables balances that are past due for more than 20 days are
considered to be in default and credit impaired. Government accounts are provided for based on
specific assessment and are net of expected credit losses provision of BD 1,790 thousand (2016: BD

2,283 thousand)
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

a} Credit risk {continued)

(vi) Amounts due from telecommunications operators

b)

The maximum exposure to credit risk {net of ECL provisions) for amounts due from telecommunications
operators at by type of customer was:

2017 | | 2016
Customer segment
International operators 12,168 6,961
Local operators 3,807 2,698
16,075 | | 9,660

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group’s approach
to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possibie, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses
or risking damage to the Group's reputation. Liquidity risk may result from an inability to sell a financial
asset quickly at close to its fair value. A major portion of the Group's funds are invested in cash and
cash equivalents which are readily available to meet expected operational expenses, including the
servicing of financial obligations.

The foliowing are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The
amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include estimated interest payments and exclude the impact
of netting agreements:

1-2 More
———— i Carrying | Contractual Within than
Non-derivative financial
liabilities at 31 December 2017 Ul gashifloves Geyear Years yt';';cr’s
Trade payables 38,655 38,655 38,655
Accrued expenses and other
payables 77,335 77,335 77,335
Amount due to
telecommunications operators 14,067 14,067 14,067 - |
Loans and borrowings 238,195 257,968 24,519 17,307 | 216,142
368,252 388,025 154,576 17,307 | 216,142
) L 1-2  More
T A e Carrying Contractual Within one
Non-derivative financial liabilities than two
at 31 December 2016 amount cash flows year Years years
Trade payables 31,346 31,346 31,346 - -
Accrued expenses and other
payables 82,412 82,412 82,412 -
Amount due to
telecommunications operators 9,947 9,947 9,947 - -
I
Loans and borrowings 234,356 280,224 18,157 | 19,559 | 242,508
358,061 403,929 141,862 19,559 | 242,508
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c)

(i

(i}

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Market risk

Market rigk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and
equity prices will affect the Group's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The
objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters, while optimising the return on risk. The Group incurs financial liabilities, in order to manage
market risks. All such transactions are carried out within the guidelines set by the Group Treasury
Function.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Group is exposed to currency risk on sales and purchases that are denominated in
a currency other than the respective functional currencies of Group entities, primarily the Bahraini Dinar,
Jordanian Dinar, Maldivian Rufiyaa (which are pegged to the US Dallar), Kuwaili Dinar and British
Pounds. The Group's expasures to currency risk is limited as the majority of its investments, due lo and
from international operators are denominated in US Dollar or denominated in currencies which are
pegged to US Dollar. Consequently, the currency risk of the Group is limited.

The Group seeks to manage currency risk by continually monitoring exchange rates and by maintaining
an adequate level of foreign currencies to cover its expected commitment to international
telecommunication operators. These amounts are placed significantly in short-term fixed deposit
accounts. In respect of other monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, the
Group ensures that its net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign
currencies at spot rates when necessary to address short-term imbalances.

The Group's investment in its subsidiaries is not hedged as those currency positions are considered to
be long-term in nature. In respect of other moretary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies, considering the nature of its financial instruments, the Group currently is not engaged in
hedging of foreign currency risk.

Interast rafe risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market
interest rates. Under the Group’s interest rate management policy, interest rates on monetary assets
and liahilities denominated in Bahraini Dinars, Jordanian Dinars, and Kuwaiti Dinars are maintained on a
floating rate basis. The average interest rate yield from bank deposits and debt securities during 2017
was 3.02% (2016; 2.76%).

At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Group’s interest-bearing financial instruments was:

2017 2016
Fixed rate instruments
Financial assets 43,684 50,042
Financial liabilities | 17T472 181,915
Variable rate instruments T am
Financial assets 117,440 116,430
Financial liabilities . B0723| | G24ay

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through the
profit or loss. Therefore a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect the profit or loss.
Increase or decrease in equity resulting from variation in interest rates will be insignificant.
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4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT (confinued)

¢) Market risk {continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (Continued}
Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased/{(decreased)
equity and profit or loss by BD 1,662 (2016: BD 1,164).This analysis assumes that all other variables, in
particular foreign currency rates, remain constant.

(it} Other price risk
The primary goal of the Group's investment strategy is to ensure risk free returns and invest surplus
fund available with the Group in risk free securities. Market price risk arises from investments held by
the Group (refer Note 9). The Group Treasury Function monitors its investment portfolio based on
market expectations and credit worthiness of the underlying investees. Material investments within the
portfolio are managed on an individual basis and all buy and sell decisions are approved by the Group's
Board of Directors.

d) Capital management

The Board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the Group. The Board seeks to maintain a balance
between the higher returns and growth that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position. The Board of Directors monitors the
returns on capital, which the Group defines as total equity and the level of dividends to shareholders.
The Group's objectives for managing capital are:

to safeguard the entity's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and

to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing products and services commensurately
with the level of risk.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt. There were no significant changes in
the Group’s approach to capital management during the year.
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4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

e} Accounting classification of financial instruments
Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities, together with the carrying amounts as disclesed
in the statement of financial position.

At Fair value Ftr::r val:e Total
31 December 2017 amortised through rLOf;:gor carrying
cost OcCi p amount
loss
Financial assets
Other investments at fair value - 41,488 104 41,592
Trade receivables 49,749 - - 49,749
Other receivables 49,579 - - 49,579
Unbilled revenue 24,785 - - 24,785
Cash and bank balances 158,703 - - 158,703
282,816 41,488 104 324,408
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 38,655 i 38,655
Accrued expense and other payables 75,208 - 2,127 77,335
Amounts due to telecommunications
operators 14,067 - - 14,067
Loans and borrowings 238,195 - - 238,195
366,125 - 2,127 368,252
, Fair value Fair value Total
31 December 2016 Al argg;ttlsed through through prefit carrying -
CCl or loss amount
Financial assets
Other investments at fair value - 42,598 826 43,424
Trade receivables 39,059 - - 39,059
Other receivables 27,229 - - 27,229
Unbilled revenue 18,270 - - 18,270
Cash and bank balances 172,408 - - 172,406
256,964 42,598 826 300,388
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 31,346 - - 31,346
Accrued expense and other payables 80,309 - 2,103 82,412
Amounts due to telecommunications
operators 9,947 - - 9,947
Loans and borrowings 234,356 - - 234,356
355,958 - 2,103 358,061
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4  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT (continued}

f) Measurement of fair values

The Group's financial assets and financial liabilities are measured al amortised cost except for certain
investments (refer Note 3 (h)) which are carried at fair value. Fair values measurement assumes that
the asset or liability is exchanged in an orderly transaction between market participants to sell the asset
or transfer the liability at the measurement date under current market conditions.

Underlying the definition of fair value is @ presumption that an enterprise is a going concern without any
intention or need to liquidate, curtall materially the scale of its operations or undertake a transaction on
adverse terms.

Fair value hierarchy

The Group measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of
the inputs used in making the measures:

s Level 1;: Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for an identical instrument.

s Level 2: Valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices). This category includes instruments valued using; quoted market prices in
active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments; quoted
prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are considered less than active; or other
valuation techniques where all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from market
data.

e Level 3: Valuation technigues using significant unobservable inputs. This category includes all
instruments where the valuation technique includes inputs not based on observabie data and the
uniobservable inputs have a significant effect on the instrument’s valuation. This category includes
instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar instruments where significant
unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect differences between the
instruments.
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4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT (continued}

i Measwrement of fair values (continued)

The table below analyses financial instruments, by the leve! in the fair value hierarchy into which the
fair value measurement is categorised:

Fair value
Total fal Total
31 December 2017 Level 1 Level 2 | Level 3 et el carrying
value amount
Financial assets at fair value through
Profit and Loss (FVTPL)
Other investments = : 104 104 104
Financial assets at fair value through OClI
Other investments 41,488 : = 41,488 41,488
Financial liabilities not measured at fair
value
Loans and borrowings 175,849 -| 60,724 | 236,573 238,195
Financial liabilities measured at fair value |
Contingent consideration {Other Payables) 5 : 2127 3 197 2127
| |
Fair value
—— Total
31 December 2016 Level 1| Level2 | Level3| 'Ot Ia" carrying
value amount
Financial assets at fair value through Profit
and Loss (FVTPL)
Other investments - E 26 876 76
Financial assets at fair value through OCI
Other investments 42,031 - 567 | = 42,598 42,598
Financial liahilities not measured at fair value |
Loans and borrowings 177,926 -| 57,215 | 235,141 234,356
Financial liabilities measured at fair value
Contingent consideration (Other Payables) - - 2,103 2,103 2,103

There were no transfers between the level 1 and level 2 during the year. The Group has not disclosed the
fair value for financial instruments such as short term trade and other receivables, trade and other
payables and cash and bank balances, because their carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of
fair values,
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Bahrain Telecommunications Company BSC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BD'000
6 GOODWILL
2017 | 2016
At 1 January 155,053 l' 168,826
Exchange rate adjustments 1,549 (3,773)
Impairment charge during the year (20,000) ~ (10,000)
At 31 December 136,602 155,053
a) Analysis of Goodwill

k)

(i

(i)

Goodwill has been allocated to the following operating segments/ cash generating units (CGUs):

2017 | 2016
|
Jordan 91,200 111,600
Maldives 21,871 21,871
Sure 23,494 21,548
Others 37 34
136,602 155,053

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests for impairment of goodwill annually or more frequently if there are any indications that
impairment may have arisen. The recoverable amount of a Cash Generating Unit has been determined
based on fair values less costs to sell. Fair values less costs to sell are estimated by using a combination
of the capitalised earnings approach and a market approach comparing the same with those of other
telecom companies within the region.

The key assumptions for the fair values less costs to sell calculations are those relating to discount rates,
the long term growth rates, penetration and market share assumptions, average revenues per user,
earnings before interest, taxation, depreciation and amortisation ("EBITDA”) and capital expenditure to
sales ratio. These calculations use cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management, covering the period of the validity of the telecom license (typically 5 years). Cash flows are
extrapolated using the estimated growth rates (range between 1% to 3%). The weighted average growth
rates are consistent with forecasts. The post-tax discount rates used for the calculations range between
8.5% to 12%.

(ifi) The above estimates were tested by the Group for sensitivity in the following areas:

- Anincrease f decrease in the discount rate and the long term growth rates used
A change in market share

- A decrease in future planned revenues and EBITDA margins

- Anincrease in capex to sales ratio forecasts

The results of the sensitivity testing revealed that the fair values less costs to sell calculations is sensitive
to changes in the above variables, and any adverse change in key assumptions could result in a
materially significant change in the carrying value of the goodwill and related assets. In case of the
Jordan CGU, the recoverable amount of the CGU was assessed to be lower than its carrying value by BD
20 million (2016; BD 10 million) and accordingly an impairment loss has been recognised in 2017 in
respect of goodwill allocated to the Jordan CGU. For Maldives, Sure and other locations, recoverable
amounts exceed the carrying value by a comfortable range. Refer note on segment reporting (note 31) for
details of net assets (including goodwill and intangibles) attributable to each CGU.
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7 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

31 December 2017 Licenses Others Total
Cost

At 1 January 163,975 93,897 257,872
Additions during the year 1,361 8,825 10,186
Dispesals during the year (1,436) (988) (2,424)
Effect of movements in exchange rates 2,796 2157 4,953
At 31 December 166,696 103,891 270,587
Amortisation

At 1 January 56,574 60,812 117,386
Charge for the year 11,136 7,893 19,029
Disposals during the year (1.436) (988) (2,424}
Effect of movements in exchange rates 858 1,269 2,127
At 31 December 67,132 68,986 136,118
Net book value

At 31 December 2017 99,564 34,905 134,469
31 December 2016 Licenses Others Total
Cost

At 1 January 170,108 92,981 263,089
Additions during the year - 7127 7127
Disposals during the year - (1,810) (1,810)
Effect of movements in exchange rates (6,133} (4,401} (10,534)
At 31 December 163,975 93,897 257,872
Amortisation

At 1 January 47,070 52,000 00,979
Charge for the year 10,956 9,941 20,897
Disposals during the year - (1,810) {1,810}
Impairment - 1.894 1,894
Effect of movements in exchange rates (1,452) {2,122) (3,574)
At 31 December 56,574 60,812 117,386
Net book value

At 31 December 2016 107,401 33,085 140,486

Others includes trade name, customer relationships & associated assets, non-network software's and
Indefeasible right to use {IRU) including those recognised as part of acquisition accounting.
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8 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE

The Group has a 26.943% interest in Yemen Company for Mobite Telephony Y.85.C (“Sabafon”). The principal
activities of the Company are to develop, install and operate GSM cellular telephone network and to sell
cellular telephone services and accessories in Yemen. The Group has determined that it has significant
influence because it has representation on Sabafon’s Board of Directors.

The following table analyses the carrying amount and share of loss during the year:

2017 2016
At 1 January 68,806 76,324
Adjustment on early adoption of IFRS 9 - (6,617)
Share of loss of associate (net) (3,970) -
Foreign exchange loss on loan receivable (net) - | (901)
Impairment (30,000) | -
At 31 December 34,836 68.806

The summarised aggregate financial information of the associate (unaudited and as of 30 November 2017;
2016; unaudited and as of 30 November 2016} is as follows:

2017 2016
Non-current assets 74,973 75,427
Current assets 70177 88,579
Non-current liabilities (61,776) (59,712)
Current liabilities (61,024) (73,795}
Revenues 61,223 64,493
Net loss for the period (859) (1,308}
Dividends received by the Group I - =

During 2017, the Group assessed impairment of the associate due to the uncertainty associated with the on-
going situation in Yemen. The recoverable amount has been assessed at higher of fair value less cost of
digposal and value-in-use basis. The assessment was made based on time required for the business and
economy to stabilize and projected future business plans for a petiod of § years assuming normalized
operations around its historical level. The post-tax discount rates used for the calculation is 14 % taking into
consideration the uncertainty over amount and timing of future cash flows, uncertainty inherent in the asset,
iliquidity and other factors refiected in valuing the expected future cash flows. The Group also considered
the business potential, market conditions, sustainable margins and future cash flows that the Company
would be able to generate in the projection period.

The impairment assessment indicated that the carmrying value exceeded the recoverable amount at
31 December 2017 by BD 30 milion and hence the Group has recorded impairment loss in respect of the
investment in associate. The carrying value of the associate included long-term interest in the form of a loan
of BD 8.8 million which has been fully impaired.
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9 OTHER INVESTMENTS
2017 2016

At fair value through other comprehensive income
Debt securities (at FYOCI) 34,527 35,693
Equity securities (at FVOCI) 6,961 7,005
- Equity securities (at FVTPL) 104 826
41,592 43,424

Debt securities comprise the Group's investiment in Bahrain Sovereign Bonds rated BB- as at
31 December 2017. These bonds have maturity dates ranging frem 2020 to 2023 and carry a fixed semi-
annual coupon interest ranging from 5.5% to 6.125% per annum on the face value.

Equity securities include BD 6.9 million representing market value of equity investment in Etihad Atheeb
Telecommunications Company (“the investee”), a company listed on Saudi Stock Exchange. In 2017, the
market value of the investment declined by BD 0.04 million (2016: BD 5.9 million), which was recognised

in Other Comprehensive Income.

10 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2017 2016

Trade receivables 74,930 85,762

L ess impairment allowance (25,181) (24,703)

49,749 39,059

Unbilled revenue 24,785 18,270
Prepaid expenses and other receivables 57,975 = 34,331 |
132,509 91,660 |

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade receivables at the reporting date by type of counterparty
was as follows:

2017 2016

Customers’ accounts 33,674 29,399
Telecommunications operators 16.075 9,660
49,749 39,059
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10 TRADE AND QTHER RECENNABLES (continued)
The movement on the allowance for impairment was as follows:
2017 2016
At 1 January 24,703 28,539
Impairment loss recognised during the year 1,979 1,657
Effect of movemenis in exchange rates (83) {75)
Written off during the year (1.418) | | (5,418)
At 31 December 25,181 24,703

The impairment allowances as at 31 December 2016 and 2017 represent life-time ECL on trade receivables.

11 CASH AND BANK

2017 2016

Cash in hand 2,591 416

Cash at bank 156,112 | 171,990
158,703 172,406 |

Cash and bank include BD 62,380 {(2016: BD 57,795) on account of short-term deposits with maturities
exceeding three months and unclaimed dividends. These have been excluded for the purposes of

statement of cash flows.,

12 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2017 | | 2016

Trade payables 38,655 31,346

Amounts due to telecommunications operators 14,067 9,947

Provisions, accrued expenses and other payables (note 13) 92,278 95,087

Customer deposits and billings in advance 30227 25471

Current tax liability NS 2,893

178,002 164,744

Trade and other payables are classified as follows:

2017 2016 |

Current liabilities 171,892 158,666

Non-current liabilities 6,110 5,858

178,002 164,744
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13 PROVISIONS

Included within provisions, accrued expenses and other payables are amounts provided for voluntary
employee retirement program and asset retirement cbligation. The movement in provisions is as follows:

| Voluntary employee Assef retirement

| retirement program obligation

! provision

2017 2016 2017 2016

At 1 January - - | 3,781 3,345
Amounts provided during the year 8,050 - ‘ 141 436
Amounts paid during the year (5,698) - | -
At 31 December 2,352 J 3,922 3,781

During the year, the Board of Directors approved a voluntary employee retirement program to restructure
the operations in line with its strategy. Accordingly, the Group has recognised provision of BD 8.05 million
for expected costs of this program, of which BD 5.7 million has been utilised during the year and BD 2.35
million has been carried forward as at 31 December 2017. The program is expected to be completed in
2018.

14 INCOME TAXES

Amounts recognised in profit or loss for the year

2017 2016
Current tax expense 5,775 5710
Ceferred tax expense (3,066) L (4.522_]__
Tax expense for the year 2,709 1,688

Corporate income tax is not levied in the Kingdom of Bahrain for telecommunication companies and
accordingly the effective tax rate for the Corporation is 0 % (2016: 0 %). The table below reconciles the
difference between the expected tax expense of nil (2016: nil) (based on the Kingdom of Bahrain effective
tax rate) and the Group's tax charge for the year. Subsidiaries are taxed at the combination of various tax

rates ranging from 15 % to 27 %.

Reconciliation of actual to expected tax charge

2017 | 2016
Profit before tax 15,949 47,810
Corporation tax rate of 0 % in Bahrain {2016: ¢ %) - -
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating in other
jurisdictions 2,709 | 1,688

|

Tax expense for the year 2,709 | 1,688 |
Profit after tax for the year 13,240 46,122
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14 INCOME TAXES (continued)

The following represent the deferred tax liabilities recognised by the Group and movements thereon
during the current and pricr reporting period:

2017 | | 2016 |
At 1 January 14,867 19,195
Cradit to the consolidated income statement (1,850) (2,494)
Exchange differences 820 (1,834)
At 31 December 13,837 14,867

The recognised deferred tax asset of BD 7,534 (2016: BD 6,394) is attributable to the temporary
differences related to Group’s operations in Jordan, Maldives and Channel Islands jurisdictions.

15 LOANS AND BORROWINGS

2017 ' 2016
a] Current
Term financing from a bank (i) 9,730 4,370
Vendor financing {if) 1,055 2,118
Overdraft liabilities (i} 6,156 1,597
16,941 8,085
b) Nen-current
Term financing from a bank () 43,782 48,071
Vendor financing (i) - 1,059
Bonds (iv) 177,472 | | 177,141 |
221,254 | | 226,271
238,195 | | 234,356

(I} Long term loan facility with a total available amount of BD 58.4 million (of which BD 53.5 million
outstanding as of 31 December 2017) has been wutilised by a group company to fund the company's
working capital and license fees. The facility bears an interest rate of PLR — 3.35% per annum and is
due 1o be settled by 2023. As at 31 December 2017, BD 9,7 million of the outstanding amount was
classified under current liabilities being due within the next 12 months;

(i) Vendor financing was abtained by a group company for a total amount of BD 4.2 million {of which BD
1.1 million remains outstanding as of 31 December 2017). The facility bears an interest rate of 3.00%
per annum and is due to be settled by 2018, As of 31 December 2017, all of the outstanding amount
was classified under current liabilities being due within the next 12 months;

(i) A Group company has obtained overdraft facilities to support its working capital needs. The interest

rate on these facilities range from 5.6 % to 6 % p.a. The undrawn overdraft limits as at 31 December
amounted to BD 2.9 million {2016:BD 2.9 million); and
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15 LOANS AND BORROWINGS (continued)

(iv} The Group has outstanding long term bonds with a face value of BD 178.3 million. The bonds are
listed for trading in the Irish Stock Exchange. The bonds have a tenor of 7 years maturing in 2020,
are unsecured and were priced at 325 points over 7 years US Treasuries, for a yield of 4.342% and

coupon of 4,250% payable semi-annually.

16 SHARE CAPITAL

a) Authorised

2,000 (2016: 2,000) mitlion shares of 100 fils each

b) Issued and fully paid:

1,663 (2016: 1,663) million shares of 100 fils each

2017 2016
200,000 200,000
| 166,320 166,320

- Names and nationalities of the major shareholders and the number of equity shares held in which
they have an interest of 5 % or more of outstanding shares are as follows:

Name

Bahrain Mumtalakat Holding Company BSC (¢}
Amber Holdings Limited
Social Insurance Organisation

- Distribution schedule of equity shares:

Categories

Less than 1 %

1 % up to less than S %

5 % up to less than 10 %
10 % up fo less than 20 %
20 % up to less than 50 %

Number of
shares % of share
Nationality | (thousands) heolding
Bahrain 609,840 37
Cayman Islands 332,640 20
Bahrain 337,836 20
Number of % of total
shares Number of outstanding
({thousands) shareholders shares
282,342 10,730 17
100,543 3 3}
1,280,315 3 77
1,663,200 10,736 100
| |
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17 STATUTORY AND GENERAL RESERVE

a) Statutory reserve
The Bahrain Commercial Companies Law 2001 requires all companies incorporated in Bahrain to transfer
10 % of net profit for the year to a statutory reserve, until such reserve reaches a minimum of 50 % of the
paid-up capital. Transfer to statutory reserve, effected by the subsidiaries in accordance with the
applicable law of the country of incorporation, is retained in the subsidiary concerned and included as part
of Group stafutory reserve. The reserve is not available for distribution, except in the circumstances
stipulated in the applicable law of each country.
As statutory reserve equal to 50% of the paid-up share capital has been created, no additional transfer of
profit has been made during the year.

b) General reserve
The general reserve is distributable only upon a resolution of the shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting. No transfer was made during the year 2017 by the sharcholders of the Company or any other
company within the Group.

18 DIVIDENDS

The dividends paid in 2017 and 2016 were BD 41.6 million (25 Fils per share). The dividends paid in 2017
include an amount of BD 24.9 million retating to the final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016
and interim dividend {subject to AGM ratification) of BD 16.6 million for the year 2017. The total dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2017 of 25 Fils per share (including BD 38.1 million from
retained earnings), amounting to BD 41.6 million (including final dividend of BD 24.9 million) was
proposed by the Board of Directors and is to be put forward for approval at the Annual General Meeting
on 29 March 2018. These financial statements do not reflect the final dividend payable.
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Bahrain Telecommunications Company BSC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BD’000
20 REVENUE

2017 | | 2016
Mobile telecommunications services 108,468 189,656
Data communication circuits 61,850 66,538
Fixed broadband 54 854 47,478
Wholesale 16,452 18,179
Fixed line telecommunication services 25,836 25,900
Others 21,986 19,381
379,446 | | 367,132

21 NETWORK OPERATING EXPENSES

2017 2016

Outpayments to telecommunications operators 50,004 48,272
Cost of sales of equipment and services 56,993 46,748
Repair, maintenance & other direct cost 22,347 22,187
License fee 6,899 7,148
Operating lease rentals 11,456 11,163
147,699 135,518

22 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

2017 2016

Marketing, advertising and publicity 14,693 13,451
IT operations and maintenance 5,948 4,300
Professional fees 2,583 2,650
Office rental and utilities 6,580 5,953
Other expenses 8,745 12,286
38,549 38,640

23 OTHER INCOME (NET)

During the year, the Group swapped one of its existing land plots classified as “Property and Equipment”
with a government agency in consideration of land plots with value similar to the market price of the land
given up. The Group has recognised the asset at the fair value of the land given up. Accordingly, the
Group has recognised a gain of BD 23.7 million, which is included under “other income”.
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24 LOSS ON INVESTMENTS

Impairment loss on goodwill related to a subsidiary
Impairment loss on investment in associate
impairiment 1088 on other investments (FVOCI debt)
Fair value changes (equity investment at FVTPL)

25 POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT ASSETS

a)} Defined benefit scheme

BD'000
2017 2016
6 (20,000) (10,000)
8 {30,000) X
(567) -
| (682) -
(51,249) (10,000}

At 31 December 2017, the Group operates a defined benefit pension plan (the Scheme} in Sure
(Guernsey) Ltd for the employees of that company. Under the Scheme, the retirement benefits are based
on the employee's pensionable pay and length of service. The assets of the Scheme are held in a
separate trustee administered fund. The Scheme was closed to new entrants from 1 April 2005 and was

closed to future accrual by current members on 31 July 2014,

The following table shows reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net
defined benefit liability (asset) and its components,

At 1 January

Included in profit or loss
Interest costs/ {income)
Expense cosls
Settlement credit

included in OCI

Actuarial changes arising from:
- demographic assumptions

- financial assumptions

- experfience adjustments
Return on ptan assets
excluding interest income

Movements in exchange rates
Other

Coniributions paid by employer
Benefits paid

At 31 December

(. 2017 2016
Net Net
Fair defined Fair defined
Defined | wvalue of benefit Defined value of benefit
benefit plan liability/ benefit plan liability/
obligation assets (asset) | | obligation |  assets [asset)
15,009 18,541 (3.932) 16,264 20,474 {4,210)
405 501 (95) 539 681 (142)
- (139) 138 (109} 1089
_ (89} | (32) | (37) (2421) | (1,728) |  (693)
336 330 6 (1,882) | {1,156) (728)
(276) (276) - : :
597 - 597 3,760 - 3,760
5 - 5 (174) . (174)
- &0 (60) 2,782 (2,792)
1,406 | 1739 (334) (2442) | (3196)| 754
1,731 1,799 (68) el (404) | 1,548
- 3 (3) - 144 (144)
_(502) | (502) - {517) (517) e

|

16,574 | 20,171 (3,597) | |__15,009 18,541 (3,532)
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25 POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (confinued)

a) Defined benefit scheme (confinued)

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of
profit or loss and the funded status and amounts recognised in the statement of financial position for the
respective plans:

2017 | [ 2016

Interest income on benefit obligation (96) (142}
Expense cost 139 108
Settlement credit (37) (693)
6 (726)

The major categories of plan assets of the fair value of the total plan assets are, as follows:

. 2017 2016

Equities - 2,981
Bonds 3912 3.488
Diversified growth fund - 5131
Others ' 16,259 6,941
20,171 18,541

The following table sets out the principle actuarial assumptions used for the Scheme:

Assumptions 2017 | | 2016
Price inflation 3.45% 3.6%
Discount rate 2.40% 2.6%
Pension increases 3.45% 3.6%
Life expectancy of male aged 60 in 2017 28.1 28.1
Life expectancy of male aged 60 in 2037 30.4 30.5

b) Defined Contribution plan

The provision for leaving indemnity in respect of expatriate employees amounted to BD 4.1 mitlion
(2016: BD 3.8 million} and is included under provisions and accrued expenses. The Group has
recognised BD 0.7 million {2016: BD 1.1 million) as an expense for leaving indemnity in respect of
expatriate employees.

The Group's contributions in respect of iocal employees against their pension rights and other social
benefits amounted to BD 4.3 million (2016; BD 3.6 million).

26 EARNINGS PER SHARE (“EPS")

2017 2016
Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company 3,491 37.639
Weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the year (in million) 1,663 1,663
Basic earnings per share (Fils) 2.10 226

Diluted earnings per share have not been presented separately as the Group has no commitments that
would dilute earnings per share.
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27 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

a)

b)

(i}

()

Capital commitments

The Group has capital commitments at 31 December 2017 amounting to BD 17.9 million (2016:
BD 11.7 million).

Contingent liabilities

The Group is involved in discussions relating to notifications from regulatory authorities and
government tax departments of claims and other notices amounting to BD 1.5 million (2016: Nil}.
The Group is currently of the view that there are no legitimate grounds for such claims and notices,

and all necessary legal steps to respond to and defend its position are being taken.

Guarantees

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's banks have issued guarantees, amounting to BD 4.8 million
(2016: BD 4.5 million) and letters of credit amounting to BD 7.3 million {2016: 0.9 millien).

The Group has furnished a guarantee for BD 3.0 million (2016; BD 3.7 million} to a bank for
extending credit facilities 10 an investee company in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

(i) The Group has furnished a comfort letter for BD 1.9 million (2016: BD 1.8 million) to

d)

Telecommunications Regulatory Commission, Jordan for providing a financial guarantee for the
subsidiary companies operating in Jordan.

Operating leases
The Group enters in to cancellable and non-cancellable operating lease agreements in the normal

course of business, which are principally in respect of property and equipment. Nan-cancellable
operating lease commitments are as follows:

2017 2016 |
|
Future minimum lease payments |
Within one year | 2,704 2,540 |
After one year but not more than five years 6,425 6,078 |
More than five years ‘ 6,415 6,061
| 15,634 14,679

e) Staff housing loans

The Company offers loan assistance to its Bahraini employees for the acquisition of residential
properties. The loans are funded through a local commercial bank and secured by a guaraniee
issued by the Company. The policy of providing staff housing loan guarantees was discontinued in
2007. The Company bears 75% (2016: 75 %) of the loan interest. At 31 December 2017, the
Company has an outstanding guarantee of BD 0.8 million (2016: BD 1.0 million) towards housing
loans to staff.
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28 NON-GCONTROLLING INTEREST (NCI}

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-
controlling interests before any intra-group eliminations;

2017 2016
Entity QualityNet |  Dhiraagu QualityNet Dhiraagu
NCI Share 10% | 48% 10% 48 %
Non-current assets {excluding goodwill} 7,180 77,465 7,503 77,549
Current assels 23,443 27,411 22173 35,530
Non-current lizbilities (2,188) (7,883) (1,767) (8,073)
Current liabilities {20,292) (17,7186) (18,987} {19,044)
Net assets | 8,143 79,277 8,922 85,062
Carrying amount of NCI 814 38,053 892 41,262
Revenue 27,578 64,064 28,221 61,157
Profit & total comprehensive income 3,370 20,090 4,764 17,129
Profit allocated to NCI raiin 337 | 9,643 476 8,222
Cash flows from operating activities 3,282 24,589 4,996 29,008
Cash used in investing activities (772) (8,145) (1,054) (6,280)
Cash used in financing activities, before
dividends to NCI (3,832) (14,384) (4,938) (11,271)
Cash used in financing activities - cash |
dividends to NCI (426) (12,851} {549) (9,457)
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and
cash equivalents (1,748) (10,791) | (1,545) | 2,000

29 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

(i) The Company qualifies as a government related entity under the definitions provided in the IAS 24. The
Company provides telecommunication services to various Government and semi government
organisation and companies in the Kingdom of Bahrain. The Company also avaifs various services from
Government and semi government organisation and companies in the Kingdom of Bahrain. Such
transactions are in the normal course of business and are not considered to be individually significant in

terms of gize.

(i) Transactions with key management personnel: Key management personnet of the Group comprise of the
Board of Directors and key members of management having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Group.

The key management personnel compensation is as follows:

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits

Total key management personnel compensation

Post-employment benefits outstanding

Directors remuneration (including sitting fees)

(iffy Transactions with associates are disclosed under note 8.

13]

2017 2016 |
2,279 2413
275 251 |
2,554 2,664 |
2017 2016 |
165 251
642 621
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29. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (continued)

{iv) Directors’ interests in the shares of the Company at the end of the year were as follows:

2017 2016

Total number of shares held by Directors 324,682 1,041,217

As a percentage of the total number of shares issued L 0.02% | 0.06%

30 COMPARATIVES

The comparative figures have been regrouped, where necessary, in order to conform to the current
year's presentation. Such regrouping did not affect the previously reported profit, comprehensive income
for the year or total equity.
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32 LIST OF PROPERTIES OWNED AND RENTED BY THE COMPANY IN BAHRAIN

Description Usage _ Owned/Rented
Hamala Headquarter Offices Owned
Diplomat Building Offices & Telecoms Qwned
Telephone House Offices & Telecoms Owned
Telegraph House Offices & Telecoms Owned =
Batelco Commercial Centre Offices & Exchanges Qwned

Earth Station Satellite Station I Owned
‘Hamala Transmitters Transmission Station Owned

Abul Land Car Park Car Park Qwned

Sales Site (in BCC) Customer Service Centre & Offices Owned

18 Sales Site Customer Service Centre Rented

e/ q|fferent siesusedionOyibese GSM & fixed telephone network Owned
_stations and exchanges

337 different sites used for locating

Remote Line Units (RLUs) Plus MNE | GSM & fixed telephone network Rented

Sites.
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